"TOWN OF ‘f

(S.’ —— Town Hall: POB 970, 4117 Oak Ridge Road, Summerfield, NC 27358
ph: 336-643-8655 / fax: 336-643-8654 / www.summerfieldnc.gov

ZONING BOARD AGENDA

May 20,2019, SUMMERFIELD TOWN HALL
6:00 PM ZONING BOARD WORK SESSION

1. Call to order
2. Introductions
3. Consent agenda:
A. Meeting agenda
B. Minutes of 5/6 and 5/13 meetings
4. UDO work session:
A. By-laws (see attached as adopted by Town Council 11/10/2011)
B. Affordable housing
5. Other business (as needed)
6. Public comments on items related to Agenda Items (limited to 3 minutes per speaker)

7. Adjourn

—=——= Council: Mayor Gail Dunham, Mayor Pro-tem Dena Barnes, Dianne Laughlin, John O'Day, Teresa Pegram, Reece Walker Manager: Scott Whitaker e=—————ro-



TOWN OF ‘f

Town Hall: POB 970, 4117 Oak Ridge Road, Summerfield, NC 27358
ph: 336-643-8655 / fax: 336-643-8654 / www.summerfieldnc.gov

ZONING BOARD MINUTES

MAY 6, 2019, 6:00PM, SFD TOWN HALL

Planning and Zoning Board Alternates Staff

Richard (Dick) Feulner Clint Babcock Chris York, Town Planner
George (Jeff) Davis Clark Doggett

Scott Henson Frank Ficca

Kathy Rooney (absent) Ryan Moats

Trudy Whitacre ' _ 1

In accordance with the Board's rotation policy, Babcock and Moats sat in for Hengm and Rooney
Next in line: Ficca. .

CONSENT AGENDA

Upon motion by Davis, seconded by Moats and carried unanimously, thecﬁﬂsent agenda was
approved. It consisted of the meeting agenda and the ameﬂded minutes of W/E meeting.

UDO WORK SESSION

Feulner noted that he had met informally with York and Fown Manager Scott Whitaker following
the last meeting and the consensus was that Atticle 9, Enmronmeﬁta! Regulations, which was
reviewed at the 4/29 meeting largely dealt with technical matters best reviewed by the Town’s
environmental consultants. Also, it was decided that the Town’s existing Night Sky Ordinance
would continue to be utilized and would be integrated into the new UDO. A stand alone “Dark Sky
Ordinance™ being its own section in the UDO, will be included at a later time.

The Board began a discussion of affordable housing, Feulner distributed a draft “Guiding Principles
for Affordable Housing” for the Board’s consideration (a copy is attached to these minutes for
reference). The Board reviewed the draft and there was a great deal of discussion regarding it.
Feulner suggested that the Board take the draft under consideration and revisit it at a subsequent
meeting. /

The Board discussed the concept of a town core overlay, with differing opinions being expressed as
to potential boundaries for such adistrict. Feulner noted that it appeared to be the consensus of the
Board that the town core be expanded and that there should be an OSRD mixed use district created
in the interest of promoting affordable housing. Feulner suggested the next step would be to work
on defining the boundaries of a town core district.

Feulner noted that he would be providing an update to Town Council at their 5/14 meeting. He
suggested that the Board ask the Council for guidance on how to proceed further on the issue of
affordable housing and/or the town core overlay district. The Board did not reach consensus on this,
it being suggested that such a discussion might be premature given that the Board had not reached a
draft proposal at this time. The consensus of the Board was that it would meet on 5/20 without the
consultants to continue the discussion of affordable housing.

—=———= Council: Mayor Gail Dunham, Mayor Pro-tem Dena Barnes, Dianne Laughlin, John O'Day, Teresa Pegram, Reece Walker Manager: Scott Whitaker e—————



TGWN OF lf

Town Hall: POB 970, 4117 Oak Ridge Road, Summerfield, NC 27358
ph: 336-643-8655 / fax: 336-643-8654 / www.summerfieldnc.gov

Feulner stated that he supported updating the Board’s by-laws in conjunction with the UDO update
to reflect the alternate Board member rotation practice that has been in place for the last year.
Feulner also recommended that this be added to the UDO.

There was a discussion of runoff issues caused by development in the Mears Fork watershed. It was
the consensus of the Board that the County be asked to become involved with the idea of improving
policies to better manage this issue.

OTHER BUSINESS — none

PUBLIC COMMENTS

Priscilla Olinick expressed appreciation to the Board for its werk, citing the lmpmthnce of it to the
future of the Town. In response to a question from Olinick, David Couch stated that kis company
intended to submit an application to modify the original application to develop Henson Viﬁage
without a multi-family residential component.

Todd Rotruck commented on affordable housing, stating that it would r:eqﬁir_e higher density and
questioned whether this would be appropriate for Summesfield. He also stated that affordable
housing already exists, if it is defined as costing less tharn$250,000.

Gail Dunham stressed the need for legal review of the UDQ, 'Stzggesting that it be someone with
whom the Board wanted to work. Dunham suggested that people want low density and that it
would be difficult to develop affordable housing with low density. She thanked the Board for their
work.

Upon motion by Babcock, seconded by Moats and carried urm1mously the meeting was adjourned
at 7:50pm.

Richard Fetlhml Chair Lance G. Heater, Town Clerk

————— Council: Mayor Gail Dunham, Mayor Pro-tem Dena Barnes, Dianne Laughlin, John O'Day, Teresa Pegram, Reece Walker  Manager: Scott Whitaker e==————



Summerfield Guiding Principles for Affordable Housing
DRAFT

1. we will include a separate subsection in Article 6 entitled “Affordable
Housing”

2. we will make every effort to implement all affordable housing
recommendations of the UDO Committee

3. affordable housing can have many aspects such as homeless shelters or
transition housing. Summerfield’s goal for affordable housing is to increase
housing options for public servants, young families and those wishing to
downsize yet remain in our community

4. the town will not financially subsidize housing in any fashion

5. the town will attempt to provide some form of non-financial incentive(s) to
encourage construction of new affordable housing

6. developers receiving an incentive for the construction of affordable housing
will not be required to sell the affordable housing “units” to someone with
a specified annual household income threshold

7. affordable housing units will be designed to be comparable with the
surrounding housing

8. when affordable housing units are to be constructed in a new subdivision,
they are to be distributed throughout the subdivision and not located in a
separate section

9. in a new subdivision, twin homes are acceptable providing they are
designed to be compatible with neighboring single housing units

10. to qualify for an affordable housing “unit incentive” at least 15% of the
units in a new subdivision must qualify as affordable in Summerfield

11. an increased density incentive of XX% will be offered to encourage
affordable housing in new subdivision providing soil conditions are
adequate to provide an acceptable supply of safe drinking water and
provide a safe sewage system

12. An addition XX% of the set aside open space area may be used for septic
and well in construction qualifying as affordable. Guilford County
Department of Health will be responsible for determining whether site
conditions are adequate to address the proposed new development

13. a town core expansion overlay will be developed solely to encourage
affordable housing construction. A density of XX units per acre will be
permitted providing soil conditions are adequate for safe well and septic as
determined by the Guilford County Department of Health



14. no open space set aside requirements will be in the town core overlay
district for qualifying affordable housing units

15.affordable housing is defined as a housing unit that a family or individual
could afford if they had an annual income of at least 80% of the median
Summerfield household of $95,500

16. the median income for Summerfield will be recalculated from time to time
on a schedule established by town council but no more frequently than
once per calendar year

17. to calculate the affordable housing threshold, Summerfield will use the 28-
36 percent rule for determine the pricing target for affordable housing and
creditworthy and purchasers must have enough funds for the required
down payment. https://www.investopedia.com/terms/t/twenty-eight-
thirty-six-rule.asp

Based on my inexperienced assessment and the figures provided by McGill, an
affordable housing unit would need to be priced in the $250,000 range.




'TG)WN OF ‘f

Town Hall: POB 970, 4117 Oak Ridge Road, Summerfield, NC 27358
ph: 336-643-8655 / fax: 336-643-8654 / www.summerfieldnc.gov

ZONING BOARD MINUTES

MAY 13, 2019, 6:00PM, SFD TOWN HALL

Planning and Zoning Board Alternates Staff

Richard (Dick) Feulner Clint Babcock Chris York, Town Planner
George (Jeff) Davis (absent) Clark Doggett Lance Heater, Town Clerk
Scott Henson (absent) Frank Ficca

Kathy Rooney Ryan Moats

Trudy Whitacre

Guests

Richard Smith and Greg Kelly, of McGill Associates.

In accordance with the Board’s rotation policy, Ficca and Doggett sat in for Davis and Henson. Next
in line: Babcock.

CONSENT AGENDA

The meeting agenda was approved by consensus. There were no minutes to be approved due to the
absence of the Clerk at the last meeting. ' '

UDO WORK SESSION

Feulner noted that Articles 1 and 2 were cornplete in draﬁfﬂrm,havmg been reviewed twice. It was
the consensus of the Board that Artxckegneeded technical review that was beyond the Board’s
expertise. -

The majority of the meetmg was spent in rev[ewmg Articles 3, 4, and 5, with much discussion
occurring between the Board, consultants and staff. Tt was decided that Article 4 needed to have
amendments made and that review would continue at the next meeting. In Article 5, it was agreed
that all pew major subdivisions should require an HOA be established. It was also agreed that
HOAs needed to be prohibited from prohibiting accessory structures and accessory dwelling units..

The meeting schedule was discussed, with the Board scheduling its next meetings on 5/20 and 5/28
without the consultants. On 6/10, the meeting was scheduled from 6-9pm with consultant Greg
Kelly (Richard Smith being unayailable during the month).

It was decided that topics for the 5/20 meeting would be affordable housing and the bylaws of the
Board.

OTHER BUSINESS — none

PUBLIC COMMENTS

Gail Dunham suggested that the Board disallow car washes and commercial laundries in the UDO
due to their high water usage. She also suggested that the Board make a recommendation to Town
Council on the selection of an attorney to conduct legal review of the draft ordinance.

—==—== Council: Mayor Gail Dunham, Mayor Pro-tem Dena Barnes, Dianne Laughiin, John O'Day, Teresa Pegram, Reece Wolker  Manager: Scott Whitaker em————



£

" TOWN OF
5————0 . ———————— Town Hall: POB 970, 4117 Oak Ridge Road, Summerfield, NC 27358
UIILIILES

ph: 336-643-8655 / fax: 336-643-8654 / www.summerfieldnc.gov

Upon motion by Doggett, seconded by Ficca and carried unanimously, the meeting was adjourned
at 8:27pm.

Richard Feulner, Chair Lance G/Heater, Town Clerk

~————— Council: Mayor Gail Dunham, Mayor Pro-tem Dena Barnes, Dianne Laughlin, John O'Day, Teresa Pegram, Reece Walker  Manager: Scott Whitaker e=——



Summerfield Zoning Board By-Laws
Adopted November 10, 2011

1. Authorization and Purpose

Pursuant to Section 9-2 of the Summerfield Development Ordinance as authorized by NCGS
160A-361 these by-laws are enacted by the Zoning Board (‘the Board”) in order to clarify
statutory rights and procedures.

In the case of any conflict with the Development Ordinance, the Development Ordinance will
take supremacy over the by-laws.

2. Membership

The Board shall be presided over by the Chairperson who shall be elected during the first
meeting of the calendar year. The Board shall also elect a Vice-Chairperson that will preside
over meetings in the event that the Chair is either unable to attend or has a conflict of interest.
Both Officers shall be elected by a majority of the Board, excluding alternates.

The Town Council will strive to appoint members equally representing the various sectors or
districts of the Town, types of residential properties and other criteria as may be expressed by
the Town Council. The Town Council will not discriminate on the basis of gender, ethnic or
socio-economic background. Voting members are required to reside (be residents) within the
Town of Summerfield corporate limits

In order for the Board to carry out its duties and responsibilities, all members and alternates are
expected to attend each meeting. In the event of an absence or of a conflict of interest, the
Board member or alternate should notify the Clerk to the Board or staff as soon as possible.

Section 9-2.2 of the Town of Summerfield Development Ordinance outlines general
membership rules, including the number of members of the Board, and the powers and duties of
the Board.

3. Timing of Decisions

Decisions by the Board shall be made not more than thirty (30) days from the time of the
hearing.

4. Conflicts of Interest

Each Board member is expected to act in a manner to maintain their integrity and
independence, yet be responsive to the interests and needs of the Town, Town Council and
staff.

No Board member shall take part in the hearing consideration or determination of any case in
which they hold a personal or financial interest.

Board members should not attend scheduled open houses.

Board members should not publicly discuss a case prior to a public hearing, through and
including the final disposition of the case by Council (in order to reduce potential future conflicts
should a case be remanded back to the Zoning Board).

No Board membgr shall vote on any matter deciding an application or appeal unless they
attended the public hearing on that application or appeal.



Board members shall understand their role as an advisory Board and respect the decisions
made by the Town Council and staff.

Board members have legitimate interests (economic, professional, and vocational) of a private
nature. Board members shall not be denied, nor should they deny to other Board members or
citizens the opportunity to acquire, retain, and pursue private interests, economic or otherwise,
except when conflicts with their responsibility to the public cannot be avoided. Board members
must exercise their best judgment to determine when this is the case.

Board members will understand that the actions of their Board may interfere with, or be counter
to, the actions of another committee of the Town Council. When this occurs, it is incumbent
upon the Board members to properly discuss the issues arising from such conflict and be willing
to accept the decisions made by other committees, staff, and Town Council as acting in the best
interest of the citizens of Summerfield.

Board members should conserve the resources of the Town in their charge. They should
employ Town equipment, property, funds and personnel only in legally permissible pursuits and
in a manner that exemplifies excellent stewardship.

Board members have a Fiduciary Duty to the Town and Board, not their own or other private
interests. Any possible fiduciary conflicts shall be disclosed to the Board and the Town Council.

A criminal background check may be performed on any Board applicant.

5. Meetings
The Board shall meet once a month unless canceled by the Chair. The Board shall designate
the fourth (4") Monday day of the month (unless this conflicts with a holiday) at 7:00 PM as its
regular meeting period. Zoning Board Staff shall be present for each meeting. Staff shall consist
of a member of the Summerfield Planning Department or other designated Zoning Officer.

A quorum of three (3) members of the Board is required to open a public meeting.

When not seated on the Board, alternate members shall not comment during the public meeting
on any matter before the Board.

Procedures
¢ All meetings shall be open to the public.

e The order of business at meetings shall be at the discretion of the presiding
Chairperson.

« All meetings will be recorded and the recordings shall act as the official minutes
of the meeting.

6. Special Meetings
Special, emergency or recessed meetings of the Board may only be called by the Chair. At

least forty-eight (48) hours notice of the time and place of these special meetings shall be given
by the Chair to each member of the Board.

7. Organizational meeting

At their first meeting of each calendar year, the Board shall elect a Chair and a Vice-Chair.



8. Agenda

The Board's clerk shall prepare a proposed agenda for each meeting. A request to have an
item of business placed on the agenda should be received at least one week before the
meeting. Any Board member may, by a timely request, have an item placed on the proposed
agenda. Background information should be made available, and each Board member shall
receive a copy of the agenda and agenda package and it shall be available for public inspection
when it is distributed to the Board members. The Board shall discuss and revise, as necessary,
the proposed agenda at each meeting.

9. Order of Business
The order of business for each regular meeting shall be as follows:

Introductions
Adoption of the agenda
Consideration of the minutes
Public hearings

o Old business

o New business
¢ Other business
Adjournment

10. Public Hearings
The format of public hearings shall be as follows:

The Chair will read the case from the agenda.
o Staff will explain the facts of the matter to the Board and, where appropriate, present
graphic displays for the purpose of acquainting the Board with the action being
requested.
The applicant(s) will present argument.
The proponents will present testimony.
The opponents will present testimony.
The Chair may permit rebuttal.
The Board may ask questions of the proponents and opponents.
The Board will render its decision.

11. Presiding Officer

The Chair of the Board shall preside at Board meetings if they are present. The Chair will vote
as a regular member. The Vice-Chair will preside over the meeting in the absence of the Chair.

12. House Rules

Anyone may make a motion. Any motion requires a second. Only one motion may be
considered at a time

13. Duty to Vote

A member \n_/ho is phygically present has a duty to vote. A member may ask to be excused in
cases mv_olwng a conflict of interest as defined by law or as outlined in these By-Laws. Failure
to vote will be recorded as an affirmative vote.



14. Quorum

A majority of the Board constitutes a quorum; majority is defined as more than half of the
members of the Board. There are five Board members; therefore a quorum is at least three
members.

15. Absentee Policy

If any Zoning Board member or alternate member is unable to attend a regular or special
meeting of the Board, that member shall notify the Chairperson of their absence at least 24
hours prior to the meeting. Zoning Board members are expected to attend at least 75 percent of
regular and special meetings of the Board.

16. Vote

The vote of a majority of those members present shall be sufficient to decide matters before the
Board, provided a quorum is present; provided however, that as to zoning map amendments,
the provisions of Section 3-12 of the Town of Summerfield Development Ordinance are met.

17. Minutes

Full and accurate account of the Board proceedings shall be kept. Minutes shall be a general
account so that a person not in attendance would have a reasonable understanding of what
transpired; the official minutes are a CD recording of the minutes. Minutes shall be open to
inspection by the public. Minutes shall include each motion and the results of each vote.

18. By-Laws may be amended

These rules of Board procedure may be amended from time-to-time by the Zoning Board
members and a majority vote.

19. Robert’s Rules of Order
The Board will generally refer to Robert's Rules of Order Newly Revised during meetings.
20. Compensation

Board members will not be compensated for their time while serving on the Board.
Reimbursement for expenses directly attributed to activities of the Board such as travel,
attendance at out-of-town meetings, and reimbursements for purchases made as part of an
ongoing project or event are allowed following the established reimbursement procedures for
the Town of Summerfield.

21. Alternate Members

Alternate members of the Board shall be called on to participate in those meetings and hearings
at which one or more regular members are absent or are unable to participate in hearing a case
because of financial or other interest. Regular members, on receiving notice of a meeting they
cannot attend or upon learning that they will be unable to participate in a meeting, shall promptly
notify the clerk that they are unable to attend or participate. Alternate members shall have the
same powers and duties as regular members. To the extent practicable, the alternates, whep
called upon to participate because of a regular member’'s absence, shall alternate their
participation between each other.



When an alternate member attends a meeting and is called upon to participate because of a
regular member’s absence, that alternate member shall retain their “regular” status should the
absent regular member enter the meeting after the public hearing has been opened. The
regular member who appears after the opening of the hearing will take on “alternate” status for
the duration of that portion of the meeting. If an alternate member is called on to participate in
the Board’'s consideration of an item from which the regular Board member has been excused
due to conflict or otherwise, then the alternate shall relinquish their seat upon conclusion of that
matter.

Alternates should not ask questions of clarification from the audience.



